ALL AMERICAN YOUTH FOOTBALL and DRILL TEAM ASSOCIATION, INC. BY-LAWS EFFECTIVE November 12, 2013

ARTICLE I NAME

Section 1.Name: This Non-Profit corporation, incorporated pursuant to the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, shall be known as ALL AMERICAN YOUTH FOOTBALL and DRILL TEAM ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE II OFFICES

<u>Section 1. Offices:</u> The principal office of the corporation in the State of Texas shall be located in the County of Harris. The corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of Texas, as the Board of Directors may determine or as the affairs of the corporation may require from time-to-time.

<u>Section 2. Registered Office:</u> The Corporation shall have and continue to maintain in the State of Texas a registered office, and a registered agent whose office is identical with such registered office, as required by the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act. The registered office may be, but need not be; identical with the principal office in the State of Texas, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors. It shall be the duty of the then current President to maintain a registered agent for service of process and other purposes.

ARTICLE III MEMBERS

Section 1. Members: Each Booster Club accepted into membership in accordance with the rules and regulations of the A.A.Y.F.D.T. Board of Directors shall be deemed a "Member" of the corporation and shall operate under the policies and regulations of the corporation.

<u>Section 2.Definition of "Booster Club":</u> A "Booster Club" is defined as a group or organization of persons, duly elected by its parent members, operating within the framework of this non-profit corporation, having their purposes the furtherance of the aims and goals of this non-profit corporation.

<u>Section 3. Definition of "Board of Directors":</u> The Board of Directors of the corporation shall consist of one designated representative from each Member (hereafter referred to as "Directors") and the President of the A.A.Y.F.D.T.

<u>Section 4. Election of New Members:</u> Each new Member shall be elected by the then current Board of Directors of the corporation. An affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors constituting a quorum at such meeting shall be required for admission to the A.A.Y.F.D.T.

<u>Section 5. Voting Rights:</u> Each Director shall be entitled to one (1) vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the Board of Directors. The President of the A.A.Y.F.D.T. shall only be entitled to a vote on matters that result in a tie amongst the voting Directors.

<u>Section 6. Eligibility to Vote:</u> A Member in good standing is entitled to a vote, through its representative Director, at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the corporation. A Member in good standing is one who has paid all required fees, fines, dues and assessments; and is not suspended as of the date of the meeting.

<u>Section 7. Termination of Membership:</u> The A.A.Y.F.D.T. Board of Directors, by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all of the Directors, may suspend or expel a Member for cause after an appropriate hearing.

<u>Section 8. Resignation:</u> Any Member may resign by filing a written resignation with the secretary, but such resignation shall not relieve the Member so resigning of the obligation to pay any assessments, or other charges theretofore accrued and unpaid. Any member that has been removed pursuant to Article III, Section 7 herein or has resigned, shall within thirty (30) days return and surrender all right, title and interest to and in any football/drill team equipment, supplies, foods, equipment, and cash or bank accounts and any other corporate property used by said Member in connection with A.A.Y.F.D.T.

activities. Each said Member, shall upon request of appropriate A.A.Y.F.D.T. officials, execute such documents as are necessary to complete the return of such items and will surrender any keys to existing storage places to enable the A.A.Y.F.D.T. to recover said property.

<u>Section 9. Reinstatement:</u> A former Member may be reinstated to membership on such terms as the A.A.Y.F.D.T Board of Directors may deem appropriate. A written request signed by the President of any Member Booster Club and filed with the Secretary requires the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors at the time of the written request.

Section 10. Transfer of Membership: Membership in this corporation is not transferable or assignable.

<u>Section 11. Exercise of Membership:</u> Any right to act or duty to act granted to or required of a Member herein shall be exercised by that Member's duly chosen President or such other officer of the Member as the President may direct to act on his behalf.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS

<u>Section 1. Annual Meeting:</u> An annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held at such place as designated by the A.A.Y.F.D.T. on the second Tuesday of December in each year, at the hour of 7:00 o'clock P.M., for the purpose of electing Officers and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday in the State of Texas, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the election of Officers shall not be held on the day designated herein for any annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the Directors as soon thereafter as conveniently may be.

<u>Section 2. Regular Meetings:</u> A regular meeting of the Directors shall be held without other notice than this by-law immediately after, and at the same place, as the annual meeting of the Directors. The Officers may provide by resolution the time and place, either within or without the State of Texas, for the holding of additional regular meetings of the Directors without other notice than such resolution.

<u>Section 3. Special Meetings:</u> Special meetings may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings may fix any place, within the state, as the place for holding any special meeting called by them.

<u>Section 4. Committee Meetings:</u> Committee meetings may be called by or at the request of the Chairman of the Committee or any two members of the Committee. The person or persons authorized to call meetings of the Committee may fix any place, within the state, as the place for holding any Committee meeting called by them.

<u>Section 5. Place of Meetings:</u> The A.A.Y.F.D.T. Officers may designate any place, either within or without the State of Texas, as the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any special meeting. If no designation is made or if a special meeting is otherwise called, the place of the meeting shall be the registered office of the corporation in the State of Texas; but if all of the Directors shall meet any time and place, either within or without the State of Texas, and consent to holding of a meeting, such meeting shall be valid without call or notice, and at such meeting any corporate action may be taken

<u>Section 6. Notice of Special Meetings:</u> Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least two (2) days previously thereto by telephone communication, computer aided electronic communication or written notice delivered personally or sent by mail, facsimile or telegram to each Officer and Director at his/her address as shown by the records of the corporation. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid. If notice be given by telegram, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when the telegram is delivered to the telegraph company. If notice be given by facsimile, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered if evidenced by a confirmation that the notice was transmitted. Any Officer or

Director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where an Officer or Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. The business to be transacted at the meeting need not be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, unless specifically required by law.

Section 7. Quorum: A quorum for the annual meeting is defined as two-thirds (2/3) of the then current Directors. and in the case of any other meeting requiring a vote to be submitted to the Directors, a quorum shall be defined as two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors.

A quorum for regular meetings not requiring a vote of the Directors is defined as a simple majority of the then current Directors.

Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.

<u>Section 8. Actions Requiring Board of Directors approval:</u> The following actions require prior approval of the Board of Directors. It is anticipated that the Officers will take prior action to approve recommendations on these items prior to presenting them to the Directors.

- (a) Annual budget and variance allowance per line item and in total for fiscal year;
- (b) All capital expenditures or any action that obligates the corporation for expenditures not approved in the annual budget;
- (c) Any changes to the by-laws of the A.A.Y.F.D.T.;
- (d) Any changes to the League Rules and Regulations regarding football and drill team activities;
- (e) Any changes to the A.A.Y.F.D.T. Policies and Procedures;
- (f) The addition or deletion of any Member of the organization, other than by resignation;
- (g) The addition or deletion of any Officer or Office position of the organization.
- (h) The formation of committees.
- (i) Authorizing indemnification.

<u>Section 9. Manner of Acting:</u> The act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these by-laws. "Roberts' Rule of Order" shall compose the parliamentary authority for procedures not specifically covered by these by-laws.

<u>Section 10. Proxies:</u> At any meeting of the Board of Directors, a Director entitled to vote may vote by proxy executed in writing. No proxy shall be valid after 15 days from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

Section 11. Cumulative Voting: Cumulative voting is expressly prohibited.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

Section 1. General Powers: The day-to-day affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Officers.

<u>Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications:</u> The Officers shall be comprised of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Athletic Director, and Drill Team Director. Each Officer shall hold office

until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors and until his successors shall have been elected and qualified.

<u>Section 3. Election of Officers</u>: The Officers of the corporation shall be elected bi-annually by the Board of Directors at the annual meeting. An affirmative majority vote of the Directors constituting a quorum at the annual meeting shall be required for election. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as convenient. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall been qualified, unless he/she sooner resigns.

<u>Section 4. Removal of Officers:</u> Any officer elected may be removed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at a meeting duly called whenever, in its judgment, the best interest of the corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the office so removed.

<u>Section 5. Vacancies:</u> Any vacancy occurring in the Officers shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors. An Officer elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office. Nominations shall be taken from the floor at a regularly scheduled meeting. Any position to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Officers shall be filled by election at an annual meeting or at a special meeting of the Board of Directors called for that purpose.

<u>Section 6. Compensation:</u> Officers as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their services, but by resolution of the Board of Directors any Officer may be indemnified for expenses and costs, including attorneys' fees, actually and necessarily incurred by him/her in connection with any claim asserted against him/her, by action in court or otherwise, by reason of his/her being or having been such Officer, except in relation to matters as to which he/she shall have been guilty of negligence or misconduct in respect of the matter in which indemnity is sought.

<u>Section 7. Duties of the Officers:</u> The Officers shall be responsible for the day-to-day operations of the corporation including, but not limited to:

- (a) Accounting for all monies received by the corporation and the preparation of financial statements including balance sheets and income statements;
- (b) Making all operating expenditures provided they have prior approval from the Directors in the annual budget or are within the variance approved by the Board of Directors;
- (c) Approval of vendors for services provided the expenditure is within the budget or variance approved by the Directors;
- (d) Preparation of all federal and state income, franchise and sales tax returns and other governmental reporting requirements;
- (e) Insuring that the meetings of the Board of Directors are held in an orderly and democratic fashion with due care to the goals of the corporation and the welfare of the children;
- (f) Insuring compliance with all laws giving the A.A.Y.F.D.T. a non-profit status for state or federal tax purposes;
- (g) Developing a schedule of competition, consistent with the current rules in place for approval by the Directors;
- (h) Developing rules and regulations for football play and drill team competition consistent with the objectives of the corporation for approval by the Directors;

- (i) Enforcing such rules and regulations as approved by the Directors from time to time; and
- (j) Submit all prior actions taken under authority granted by the Board of Directors for ratification at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

Section 8. Roles of Officers:

- (a) <u>President:</u> The President shall be the principal executive officer of the corporation and shall, in general, supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the corporation. He/She shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Officers. He/She may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper Officer of the corporation authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments that the Directors have authorized. In general, he/she shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time-to-time.
- (b) <u>Vice President:</u> In the absence of the President or in the event of his/her inability to act, the Vice President, or in the event there be more than one Vice-President, Vice Presidents in the order of their election, shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions of the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time-to-time may be assigned to him/her by the President or Board of Directors.
- (c) <u>Treasurer:</u> He/She shall perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time-to-time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer will:
 - (a) Have charge and custody of and be responsible for all the corporation's funds and securities.
 - (b) Receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the corporation from any source.
 - (c) Deposit all moneys in the corporation's name in banks, trust companies, or other depositaries as these Bylaws provide or as the Directors or President directs.
 - (d) Write checks and disburse funds to discharge the corporation's obligations.
 - (e) Maintain the corporation's financial books and records.
 - (f) Prepare financial reports at least annually.
 - (g) Perform other duties as assigned by the president or the Directors.
 - (h) Give a bond for faithfully discharging his or her duties in a sum and with a surety as required by the Board of Directors.
 - (i) Perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer.
- (d) <u>Secretary:</u> The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Officers in one or more books provided for the purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the corporation and see that the seal of the corporation is affixed to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the corporation under its seal is duly authorized with the provisions of these by-laws; keep a register of the post-office address of each Director; and in general perform all duties incident to the office of

Secretary and such other duties as from time-to-time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the Directors.

- (e) Athletic Director: The Athletic Director is responsible for:
 - (a) development of a league playing schedule in accordance with the rules approved by the Board of Directors;
 - (b) enforcement, subject to the appellate rights granted herein, of league rules and regulations;
 - (c) development and supervision of all post-season football activities;
 - (d) defending the decisions of the Athletic Director at any appellate hearing;
 - (e) assisting, by participation on the rules committee, in the development of football rules of play;
 - (f) ensuring that football play is fair and equitable to all teams and players.
- (f) <u>Drill Team Director</u>: The Drill Team Director is responsible for:
 - (a) development of a league competitive schedule in accordance with the rules approved by the Board of Directors;
 - (b) enforcement, subject to the appellate rights granted herein, of league rules and regulations;
 - (c) development and supervision of all post-season drill team activities;
 - (d) defending the decisions of the Drill Team Directors at any appellate hearing;
 - (e) assisting, by participation on the rules committee, in the development of drill team rules of conduct and competition;
 - (f) ensuring that drill team participation is fair and equitable to all teams and participants.

ARTICLE VII COMMITTEES

<u>Section 1. Committees:</u> By resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, one or more committees, each of which shall consist of one or more Directors, which committees, to the extent provided in said resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the corporation; but the designation of such committees and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual Director, of any responsibility imposed on it or him/her by law.

<u>Section 2. Other Committees:</u> Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the corporation may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Except as otherwise provided in such resolution, members of each such committee shall be Members of the corporation and the President of the corporation shall appoint the members thereof. Any Member thereof may be removed by the persons authorized to appoint such Member whenever in their judgment the best interests of the corporation shall be served by such removal.

<u>Section 3. Term of Office:</u> Each member of a committee shall continue as such until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors and until his/her successor is appointed, unless the committee shall be

sooner terminated, or unless such member be removed from such committee, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.

<u>Section 4. Chairman:</u> One member of each committee shall be appointed chairman by the persons authorized to appoint the members thereof.

<u>Section 5. Vacancies:</u> Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in-the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.

<u>Section 6. Rules:</u> Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these bylaws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIII APPELLATE RIGHTS

<u>Section 1. Right of Appeal:</u> Every football team, drill team, coach and player shall have the right to appeal any adverse decision rendered against him/her by any Officer or Board of Directors in only the following method. Any effort by any individual to circumvent, avoid or otherwise increase or diminish the rights granted herein shall be subject to a Director vote to suspend or expel such individual or organization. No individual or team shall ever have the right to sue or to file any suit in any court in the State of Texas. Each team and every Director acknowledges and agrees that any action taken or not taken under these By-laws does not cause immediate or irreparable injury or damage and that injunctive relief is not appropriate for any act or omission of the A.A.Y.F.D.T., its Officers, Directors or any Member or participant. All appeals will be subject to the process outlined in the most current AAYFDT Policies and Procedures document.

<u>Section 2. Mediation:</u> In any dispute between the A.A.Y.F.D.T., its Officers, Directors or any Member or participant relating to the corporation's activities or decisions, all parties involved will cooperate in good faith to resolve the dispute. If the parties cannot resolve a dispute among themselves through the process set forth in this Article, the parties must cooperate to select one or more mediators to help resolve it. The mediation will be conducted in accordance with the process outlined in the current AAYFDT Policies and Procedures document.

ARTICLE IX INDEMNIFICATION

<u>Section 1. Who is Indemnified:</u> The corporation will indemnify a Director, Officer, officer of a Member, committee member, employee, or agent of the corporation who was, is, or may be named defendant or respondent in any proceeding as a result of his or her actions or omissions within the scope of his or her official capacity in the corporation. For the purposes of this Article, an agent includes one who is or was serving at the corporation's request as a Director or Officer or agent of the corporation.

The corporation will indemnify a person only if he or she acted in good faith and reasonably believed that his or her conduct was in the corporation's best interests. In case of a criminal proceeding, the person may be indemnified only if he or she had no reasonable cause to believe that the conduct was unlawful. The corporation will not indemnify a person who is found liable to the corporation or is found liable to another on the basis of improperly receiving a personal benefit from the corporation. A person is conclusively considered to have been found liable in relation to any claim, issue, or matter if the person has been adjudged liable by a court of competent jurisdiction and all appeals have been exhausted. Termination of a proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or on a plea of *nolo contendere* or its equivalent does not necessarily preclude indemnification by the corporation.

In addition to the situations otherwise described in this paragraph, the corporation may indemnify a Director, Officer, officer of a Member, committee member, employee, or agent of the corporation to the extent permitted by law. However, the corporation will not indemnify any person in any situation in which indemnification is prohibited in the paragraph above.

The corporation may advance expenses incurred or to be incurred in the defense of a proceeding to a person who might be eventually be entitled to indemnification, even though there has been no final

disposition of the proceeding. Advancement of expenses may occur only when the procedural conditions specified in subsection 3(c), below, have been satisfied. Furthermore, the corporation will never advance expenses to a person before final disposition of a proceeding if the person is a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding brought by the corporation or if the person is alleged to have improperly received a personal benefit or committed other willful or intentional misconduct.

<u>Section 2</u>. Extent and Nature of Indemnity: The indemnity permitted under these Bylaws includes indemnity against judgments, penalties, (including excise and similar taxes), fines, settlements, and reasonable expenses (including attorney's fees) actually incurred in connection with the proceeding. If the proceeding was brought by or on behalf of the corporation, the indemnification is limited to reasonable expenses actually incurred by the person in connection with the proceeding.

Section 3. Procedures Relating to Indemnification Payments:

- (a) Before the corporation may pay any indemnification expenses (including attorney's fees), the corporation must specifically determine that indemnification is permissible, authorize indemnification, and determine that expenses to be reimbursed are reasonable, except as provided in subsection (c), below. The corporation may make these determinations and decisions by any one of the following procedures:
 - (i) Majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who, at the time of the vote, are not named defendants or respondents in the proceeding.
 - (ii) If such a quorum cannot be obtained, by a majority vote of a committee of the Board, designated to act in the matter by a majority vote of all Directors, consisting solely of two or more Directors who at the time of the vote are not named defendants or respondents in the proceeding.
 - (iii)Determination by special legal counsel selected by the Directors by the same vote as provided in subparagraphs (i) or (ii), above, or if such a quorum cannot be obtained and such a committee cannot be established, by a majority vote of all directors.
- (b) The corporation will authorize indemnification and determine that expenses to be reimbursed are reasonable in the same manner that it determines whether indemnification is permissible. If special legal counsel determines that indemnification is permissible, authorization of indemnification and determination of reasonableness of expenses will be made as specified by subparagraph (a) (iii), above, governing selection of special legal counsel. A provision contained in the articles of incorporation, or a resolution of Directors that requires the indemnification permitted by section 1, above, constitutes sufficient authorization of indemnification even though the provision may not have been adopted or authorized in the same manner as the determination that indemnification is permissible.
- (c) The corporation will advance expenses before final disposition of a proceeding only after it determines that the facts then known would not preclude indemnification. The determination that the facts then known to those making the determination would not preclude indemnification and authorization of payment will be made in the same manner as a determination that indemnification is permissible under subparagraph (a), above.

In addition to this determination, the corporation may advance expenses only after it receives a written affirmation and undertaking from the person to receive the advance. The person's written affirmation will state that he or she has met the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification under these Bylaws. The written undertaking will provide for repayment of the amounts advanced by the corporation if it is ultimately determined that the person has not met the requirements for indemnification. The undertaking will be an unlimited general obligation of the person, but it need not be secured and may be accepted without reference to financial ability to repay.

(d) Any indemnification or advance of expenses will be reported in writing to the corporation's Directors. The report will be made with or before the notice or waiver of notice of the next Directors meeting, or with or before the next submission to Directors of a consent to action without a meeting. In any case, the report will be sent within the 12-month period immediately following the date of the indemnification or advance.

ARTICLE XI DUES AND ASSESSMENTS

<u>Section 1. Annual Dues or Assessments:</u> The Board of Directors may, subject to Members approval, determine from time-to-time the amount of initiation fee, if any, and annual dues payable to the corporation, if any, by Members of each class, or at their option shall assess from each Member such amount to be set by the Board of Directors that may be needed for the expenses of this corporation.

<u>Section 2. Payment of Dues or Assessments:</u> Dues or assessments shall be payable within (30) days of such assessment or no later than seven (7) days prior to the first practice of each year. Dues of assessments of a new Member shall be prorated, if authorized by the Board of Directors, from the first day of the month in which such new Member is elected to membership for the remainder of the fiscal year of the corporation.

<u>Section 3. Default and Termination of Membership:</u> When any Member shall be in default in the payment of dues of assessments for a period of 30 days from the beginning of the fiscal year of period in which such dues and assessments become payable, its membership may thereupon be terminated in the manner provided in Article III of these by-laws. Under no circumstances will a Member in default for such period of time be allowed to participate in inter-member competition, whether terminated by the Board of Directors or not.

ARTICLE XI OPERATIONS

<u>Section 1. Contracts:</u> The Directors may authorize any Officer or Officers, agent or agents of the corporation, in addition to the Officers so authorized by these by-laws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general of confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Disbursement of Funds: The Officers may dispense with the funds of the Corporation in accordance with the annual budget approved by the Board of Directors and the purposes of the Corporation as set out in the Articles of Incorporation and these bylaws. All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the corporation and in such manner as shall from time-to-time be determined by resolution of the Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer and, if required by the policies of the corporation, countersigned by the President or Vice President of the corporation.

<u>Section 3. Deposits:</u> All funds of the corporation shall be deposited from time-to-time to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

<u>Section 4. Gifts:</u> The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise for the general purposes, or for any special purposes of the corporation so long as such acceptance does not diminish or affect the corporation's non-profit status under federal tax laws.

<u>Section 5. Policies:</u> The Corporation and its Members shall abide by its policies, approved by a majority of Board of Directors.

<u>Section 6. Books and Records:</u> The corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its Members, Board of Directors, and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors, and shall keep at the registered of principal office a record giving names and addresses of the Directors entitled to vote. All books and

records of the corporation may be inspected by any Member, or his/her agent or attorney, for any proper purpose at any reasonable time. The corporation will keep correct and complete books and records of account. The books and records include:

- (a) A file-endorsed copy of all documents filed with the Texas Secretary of State relating to the corporation, including but not limited to the articles of incorporation, and any articles of amendment, restated articles, articles of merger, articles of consolidation, and statement of change of registered office or registered agent.
- (b) A copy of all bylaws, including these Bylaws, and any amended versions or amendments to them.
- (c) Minutes of the proceedings of the Members, Directors, and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors.
- (d) A list of the names and addresses of the Members, Directors, Officers, and any committee members of the corporation.
- (e) A financial statement showing the corporation's assets, liabilities, and net worth at the end of the three most recent fiscal years.
- (f) A financial statement showing the corporation's income and expenses for the three most recent fiscal years.
- (g) All rulings, letters, and other documents relating to the corporation's federal, state, and local tax status.
- (h) The corporation's federal, state, and local tax information or income-tax returns for each of the corporation's three most recent tax years.

<u>Section 7. Fiscal Year:</u> The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of January and end on the last day of December in each year.

<u>Section 8. Corporate Seal:</u> The Board of Directors shall provide the corporate seal, which shall be in the form customary for corporate seals in the State of Texas.

<u>Section 9. Waiver of Notice:</u> Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provision of the Texas Non-Profit corporation Act or under the provisions of the articles of incorporation or by the by-laws of the corporation, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person of persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

<u>Section 10. Amendments:</u> These By-laws may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors.

President A.A.Y.F.D.T	Klein Oilers President
Klein Jets President	Klein Broncos President
Klein Texans President	Klein Eagles President

Executed and approved this 12th day of November, 2013.

The Klein Bengals President	Klein Rams President
Westfield Cowboys President	Spring Lions President
Spring Dolphins President	Tomball Redcats President
Tomball Patriots President	